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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Shareholders
Qatari German Company for Medical Devices (Q.P.S.C.) :
Doha — State of Qatar 5

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Qatari German Company for Medical Devices
(Q.P.S.C) (the “Company”), Doha-State of Qatar, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at December 31, 2019, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to. the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. %

In our opinion, except for the effects of matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of
our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

= Intangible asset amounting to QR.10,329,937 as of December 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018:
QR.10,329,937) represents patent relating to the safety syringes. Management is in the
process of assessing the future economic value that will be generated from the patent. In the
absence of the assessment by the management, we were unable to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence with respect to the recoverable amount of the patent as at
December 31, 2019. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustment
might have been found necessary to the reported balances.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the State of Qatar, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the financial statements, which indicates that the company has incurred
a net loss of QR.10,386,277 for the year ended December 31, 2019 and the company’s accumulated
losses amounting to QR.127,195,066 exceeded its share capital by QR. 11,695,066 as at December 31,
2019. Further, as at that date, the current liabilities of the company exceeded the current assets by
QR.7,603,237. Pursuant to the Article 295 of the Qatari Commercial Companies Law No.11 of 2015,
if the shareholding company’s losses reaches half of its share capital, the Board of Directors should
call for an extraordinary general assembly to discuss the continuation of the Company or dissolution
before the term specified in its Article of Association. If the board of directors fails to call for the
extraordinary general assembly or if it was impractical to adopt a decision on such matter, any
interested party may request the competent court to dissolve the company. These conditions along
with other matters set forth in note 2, indicate the existence of material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue as going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.
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Emphasis of Matter
‘We draw attention to following notes to the financial statements;

Note 9(b), where the company is in the process of upgrading its existing patent rights and
license pertaining to manufacture and design of safety syringes,

Note 15(b), where the company is in the process of determining, the amount of depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the building and based on its original cost, in order
to transfer from revaluation reserve to retained earnings,

Note 6, where the buildings under property, plant and equipment are carried at revaluation
model, whereas the company has not disclosed the carrying amounts of these buildings that
would have been recognized had the buildings been carried under the cost model,

Note 7(b), where in prior years the company frequently changed its use of building as to
investment property and property, plant and equipment. However, the management is in the
process of ascertaining the cumulative cost and changes in fair value of the respective

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

buildings under investment property.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the basis for
qualified opinion, material uncertainty related to going concern and emphasis of matter paragraphs
above, we have determined the matters described below to be key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Key audit matters

How these key audit matters were addressed
in our audit

Inventory valuation and recoverable value

The cost formula adopted by the company is
weighted average cost. In case of finished goods
and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity. The valuation and recoverability
of inventories became key audit matter due to the
followings;

The company has significant levels of
inventory at the year end as disclosed in
note 10,

To arrive at value of finished goods and
cost of work in progress, involves the
allocation of overheads using a complex
process,

The recoverability of inventory is subject
to vary based on changes in level of
demand and stock holdings,

A significant proportion of the company’s
inventory balances is manufactured to
specific industry requirements,

A significant portion of long outstanding
raw materials which are held for future
productions,

Practical obstacles for identifying net
realizable value of raw materials.

Our procedures in relation to inventory
valuation and recoverable value included
but not limited;

We physically observed whether the
long aged raw materials are in usable
condition or not and obtained client’s

. expert opinion for their obsolete status,

We reviewed on a test basis the cost
formula adopted by the company are
in line with IAS 2-Inventories, ‘
We analyzed inventory balances by
age and assessed the company’s
assumptions of the expected usage
based on our knowledge and
experience of the industry in which the
company operates,

We tested the adequacy of the
company’s provisions against
mmventory by assessing the board of
directors assumptions, taking into
account for external available data,
post balance sheet events, company’s
accounting policy and historical trend
analysis,

We considered the adequacy of the
company’s disclosures about the
degree of estimation involved in
arriving at the inventory provision,
Verified on a test basis whether the
company absorbed production
overheads on a systematic basis,
Through alternative possible ways,
ascertain net realizable value of
inventories and to analyze whether
there are any reductions in realizable
value.




Valuation of buildings related to investment
property and property, plant and equipment

The company’s buildings erected on a leasehold
land are classified under property, plant and
equipment and investment properties as disclosed in
notes 6 and 7 to the financial statements.

The buildings classified under property, plant and
equipment are subsequently carried at revaluation
model and buildings classified under investment
properties are subsequently meastred fair value
model.

It has been assured by the management that the fair
value of the buildings are not less than the carrying
value.

The fair value of the company’s buildings are
determined by external real estate valuation expert
appointed by the management to ascertain whether
there are any indications for the impairment and to
measure the revalue and fair value of buildings as at
December 31, 2019.

Buildings are identified as key audit matter due to
followings; ,

e Its valuation depends on certain key
assumptions that require significant
management judgment to estimate its
recoverable value,

e The company makes judgments over
estimation of the useful life of property,
plant and equipment.

Our procedures in relation to valuation of
buildings related to investment property and
property, plant and equipment inciuded but
not limited;

e Evaluating the recognition criteria applied to
the costs incurred and capitalized during the
year,

e Assessing the depreciation method used and
the appropriateness of the key assumptions
based on our knowledge applicable for
revalued carrying amount of building,

e Evaluating the objectivity, independence
and expertise of the external valuation
expert appointed by the management,

e Evaluating the appropriateness of the
underlying assumptions and the
methodology used by the valuer by
comparing them to the previous years,
market practice and based on our
knowledge,

e Performing test of details to ensure
underlying financial assertions pertaining to
buildings are met to classify under property,
plant and equipment and investment
properties,

e We ensured the results of the valuation
performed by the valuers to the amount
reported in the financial statements,

e We assessed the adequacy and completeness
of the disclosures related to these buildings
are in line with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Loans and borrowings;
The company’s capital structure is severely geared
due to high level of debt financing. The debt capital
mainly consists of loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts. The loans and borrowings are
considered as key audit matter, due to followings;

e The amount of total debt is significant to

the statement of financial position-

(QR.119,922,797 and 78% of total assets
of the company),

e Debt to equity reaches to 3.91: 1, due to
severe bank financing,

e The significant portion of bank borrowings
amounted to QR.99,968,055 are from a
major shareholder which is 65% of total
assets,

e Most of assets of the company are pledged
against these loans and borrowings,

e Considerable amount of finance charges
are incurred by the company,

e Higher geared level lead to significant
effects to ordinary shareholders.

Our procedures in relation to loans and
borrowings included but not limited;

e Obtained direct confirmations from lending
institutions for the balances prevailed as at
December 31, 2018 and 2019 respectively to
ensure related financial assertions,

e Obtained facility agreements to ensure
whether the presentation and disclosures
related to loans and borrowings were
accurate and fairly disclosed,

e Obtained details of the assets pledged
against the borrowings and ensure its
disclosure adequacy,

¢ On a sample basis, verified the movements
in loans and borrowings to ensure whether
the related assertions were met,

e Obtained appropriate documentary
evidences to ensure whether the short and
long term classifications are accurate,

e Evaluate the independence and reasonability
of loans obtained from the major
shareholder = and  assessed  whether
transactions with the above related party are
arms length.




Other Matter

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 of Qatari German Company for
Medical Devices (Q.P.S.C) (the “Company”), Doha-State of Qatar, were audited by another auditor
whose report dated March 27, 2019 expressed a modified opinion on those financial statements due to the
fact that the company was unable to measure the recoverable value of intangible assets to ascertain
whether there are any adjustments would have been necessary for the impairment.

Other Information

The management and board of directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report of year 2019 (the “Annual Report™)
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our qualified opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to the management and the board of directors.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements ,

Our objectives are to .obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.




» Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by Qatari German Company for
Medical Devices (Q.P.S.C) (the “Company”), Doha-State of Qatar, an inventory count has been
conducted in accordance with established principles, and the financial statements comply with the Qatari
Commercial Companies’ Law No. 11 of 2015 and the Company’s Article of Association. Except for the
matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs, Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern paragraph, Emphasis of matter paragraphs and note 1(b), we have obtained all the information
and explanations we required for the purpose of our audit, and are not aware of any violations of the
above mentioned law or the Articles of Association having occurred during the year which might have
had a material effect on the business of the comipany or on its financial position.

Talal Abu-Ghazaleh & Co.
Qatar Office

@ M2 BEIAIT

Hazi 1 Surkhi, CP4
(Licen@e No.11
QFMA Licence 0152

Doha, March 29, 2020




QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES (Q.P.S.C.)
DOHA — STATE OF QATAR

EXHIBIT "A"
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
————— AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019
Note 2019 2018
(QR.) (QR.)
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant, equipment and capital work in progress -6- 116,286,878 121,723,160
Investment properties -7- 12,590,000 12,590,000
Right-of-use assets -8- 106,871 -0-
= Intangible assets -9- 10,329,937 10,329,937
Total Non-Current Assets 139,313,686 144,643,097
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories -10- 11,271,253 12,194,139
Accounts and other receivables -11- 2,581,390 5,011,257
Cash in hand and at banks -12- 961,908 494,104
Total Current Assets 14,814,551 17,699,500
Total Assets 154,128,237 162,342,597
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital -13- 115,500,000 115,500,000
Legal reserve -14- 30,343,120 30,343,120
Revaluation reserve -15- 11,999,694 11,999,694
Accumulated losses (127,195,066) (116,808,789)
Net Equity — Exhibit C 30,647,748 41,034,025
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employees’ end of service benefits -16- 997,117 1,046,028
Loans and borrowings - long term portion -17- 99,968,055 98,878,378
Lease liabilities -long term portion -8- 97,529 -0-
Total Non-Current Liabilities 101,062,701 99,924,406
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loans and borrowings - short term portion -17- 4,800,102 5,393,317
Lease liabilities -short term portion -8- 8,032 -0-
Accounts and other payables -18- 2,455,014 2,569,154
Bank overdraft -12- 15,154,640 13,421,695
Total Current Liabilities 22,417,788 21,384,166
Total Liabilities 123,480,489 121,308,572
Total Equity and Liabilities 154,128,237 162,342,597

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on March 29, 2020 and signed on its

behalf by:

~

pe I b

1

/

Mr. Eisa Khalid Al-MaSlamani
Board Member and Managing Director

Mr. Talal Sabah Al Abdullah
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 1 TO 32 CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
-1-



QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES (Q.P.S.C.)

DOHA - STATE OF QATAR
. EXHIBIT "B"
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Note 2019 2018

: (QR) (QR.)
Revenue -19- 8,143,891 11,403,126
Operating cost (Except Depreciation) -20- (7,371,608)  (8,477,236)
Gross profit 772,283 2,925,890
Other income -21- 3,000,867 2,929,704
Selling and distribution expenses -22- (437,536) (301,701)
General and administrative expenses -23- (4,592,369)  (8,662,417)
Depreciation and amortization -24- (5,530,376)  (5,702,461)
Operating (loss) before finance cost for the year (6,787,131)  (8,810,985)
Finance cost 25-  (3,599,146)  (4,022,752)
(Loss) for the year — Exhibits C & D (10,386,277) (12,833,737)
Other comprehensive income —Exhibit C -0- -0-
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year — Exhibit C (10,386,277) (12,833,737)
(Loss) per share
Basic and diluted (loss) per share (QR.) -26- (0.090) (0.11D)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 1 TO 32 CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
-
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QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES (Q.P.S.C.)

DOHA - STATE OF QATAR

EXHIBIT "D"
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
2019 2018

(QR) (QR.)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) for the year — Exhibit B (10,386,277)  (12,833,737)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 5,530,376 5,702,461
Finance cost 3,599,146 4,022,752
Reversal of accounts payable (135,944) -0-
Reversal of provision for expected credit losses (247,374) (151,006)
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 181,011 329,349
Inventories written off 45473 389,460
Property, plant and equipment written off 437 18,918
Provision for expected credit losses -0- 2,058,026
Suppliers advances written off -0- 709,638
Reversal of provision for slow moving inventories -0- (282,954)
Operating (Loss) before Working Capital Changes (1,413,152) (37,093)
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities
- Inventories 877,413 221,480
- Accounts and other receivables 2,674,399 146,377
- Accounts and other payables 21,804  (1,498,985)
Cash Generated from (used in) Operations 2,160,464 (1,168,221)
Employees’ end of service benefits paid (229,922) (168,337)
Net Cash from (used in) Operating Activities 1,930,542  (1,336,558)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and capital work in progress (85,238) (248,893)
Net Cash (used in) Investing Activities (85,238) (248,893)
CASH FL.OWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans and borrowings obtained 2,314,947 14,219,130
Repayments of loans and borrowings (3,837,491)  (8,223,903)
Finance cost paid (1,576,374)  (3,034,602)
Lease liabilities settlement (11,527) -0-
Net Cash (used in) from Financing Activities (3,110,445) 2,960,625
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,265,141) 1,375,174
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (12,927,591) (14,302,765)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (14,192,732)  (12,927,591)
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Non-Cash Transaction
Others
Prepaid lease installments reclassified to right-of-use assets 2,842 -0-

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 1 TO 32 CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4




QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES (Q.P.S.C.)
DOHA - STATE OF QATAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

1)

2)

a)

b)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Qatari German Company for Medical Devices (Q.P.S.C) (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the State of Qatar as a Qatari Public Shareholding Company by virtue of
Emiri Decree No.39 issued on October 15, 2000, under the Commercial Registration
No.23349 on February 10, 2001. ’

The Company is listed in the Qatar Exchange.

The company’s registered office is at P.O. Box 22556, Doha-State of Qatar and the
principal place of business is in Abu Hammour, Doha-State of Qatar.

The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacture of single use disposable syringes
and trading in medical equipment, tools and supplies.

Pursuant to the amended Article of Association of the company, it has been exclusively
specified that the duration of the company for 25 years from the date of its official
publication, subject to renewal through the resolution made by the shareholders at the
Extraordinary General Assembly.

GOING CONCERN

The company has incurred a net loss of QR.10,386,277 for the year ended December 31,
2019 and the company’s accumulated losses amounting to QR.127,195,066 exceeded its
share capital by QR.11,695,066 as at December 31, 2019. Pursuant to the Article 295 of
the Qatari Commercial Companies Law No.11 of 2013, if the shareholding company’s
losses reaches half of the capital, the Board of Directors should call for an extraordinary
general assembly meeting to discuss the continuation of the Company or dissolution
before the term specified in its Article of Association. If the board of director’s fails to call
for the extraordinary general assembly or if it was impractical to adopt a decision on such
matter, any interested party may request the competent court to dissolve the company.
Further, as at December 31, 2019, the current liabilities of the company exceeded the
current assets by QR.7,603,237. In addition, the company’s business operations are merely
financed through bank borrowings and bank overdrafts by one of a major shareholder and
the repayment obligations of such borrowings are extended on a frequent basis. These
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

However, these financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of recorded assets amounts or to the amounts and
classification of liabilities that may be necessary if the entity is unable to continue as a
going concern due to followings;

o the shareholders have resolved, at an extraordinary general assembly meeting held
on May 26, 2019 to continue operations of the company and diversify its
activities,

e also the management is in the process of taking measures of improving its
operations,

e a local development bank (M/s. Qatar Development Bank) being its capacity as
one of major shareholder and as a lender, confirmed in writing to continue to
provide financial support to the company to meet its liabilities and obligations as
and when they fall due. It has further confirmed that it will not make any demand
of repayment of the borrowings payable to it on or before January 2021.

e the board of directors confirmed their plan to pass a resolution at annual general
meeting to obtain shareholders consent to continue the operations of the company,
and to enable the Company to continue as a going concern and meet its financial
commitments when they fall due.

-5




3)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs)

New and amendments to the standards, new and revised interpretations and
annual improvements to IFRSs affecting amounts reported and/or
disclosures in the financial statements

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements and the
notes attached thereto are consistent with those used in the preparation of the previous
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, except for certain new,
amendments, interpretations and improvements to the standards that become effective in
the current year as describe below:

New Standards Effective Date
IFRS 16 Leases January 01, 2019
Amendments to the Standards Effective Date
IFRS 9 Prepayments, Features with Negative Compensation ~ January 01, 2019
1AS 28 Long term Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures January 01, 2019
IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement January 01,2019
New or Revised Interpretations Effective Date
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments January 01,2019
Annual Improvements to IFRS 2015-2017 Cycle Effective Date
IFRS 3 Business Combinations January 01, 2019
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 01, 2019
IAS 12 Income Taxes January 01, 2019
TAS 23 Borrowings Cost January 01, 2019

Changes in Accounting Policies

Due to the number of new, amendments, interpretations and improvements became
applicable and effective for the current reporting period and the company had to change
its accounting policies and reflect the required adjustments. However, except for effect
and changes as described in succeeding paragraph related to newly implemented
International Financial Reporting Standard 16 Leases, the other standards have been
adopted by the company, where applicable, and which did not have any material impact
on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Company.

The company has applied, where applicable, for the first time IFRS 16 Leases from its
mandatory adoption date of January 1, 2019. In accordance with transitional provisions of
this new standard, the company has adopted modified retrospective approach and the
comparatives information has not been restated.

Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 issued in January 2016 set out the principals for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases. It replaced IAS 17 “Leases”, IFRIC 4 “Determining
whether Arrangement Contain a Lease” and related interpretations.

IFRS 16 introduces the requirements of lease accounting. Hence, it introduces significant
changes to lessee accounting by mandatirig the recognition of a right-of-use assets and a
lease liability at commencement for all leases, except for short term leases and leases of
low value assets. Further, it abolished the distinguish requirement of operating and
finance lease. In Contrast to lessee accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting
have remained largely un-changed. Details of these new requirements, where applicable,
are described in succeeding paragraphs.

The Definition of a Lease .

The company has made use of the practical expedient available on transition to IFRS 16
not to reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of a
lease in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 will continue to be applied to those
contracts entered or modified before January 01, 2019.

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to control which is contrast to the focus
on risks and rewards in IAS 17. The company applies the definition of a lease and related
guidance set out in IFRS 16 to all contracts entered into or modified on or after January
01, 2019, such contracts will not significantly change the scope of contracts that meet
definition of lease of the company.
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Impact on Lessee Accounting
Operating Leases Under IAS 17
As per IFRS 16, there is significant changes for leases which were classified as operating
lease under IAS 17. In accordance with IFRS 16, all the leases, except for the exemption
criteria applied in the succeeding paragraph, the company should,
- Recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial
position initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments.
- Recognize depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
- Separate the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion and interest in the
statement of cash flows presented under financing activities.
Exemption Criteria
For short term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets
(assessed on an absolute basis) shall be exempted to recognize a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability. Hence, any lease payments associated with the exempted leases are
recognized as lease expenses on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as permitted by IFRS 16.

Others

- Lease incentives are recognized as part of the measurement of the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities. Whereas under IAS 17 it’s considered as a reduction of rental expenses
generally on a straight-line basis.

- Under IFRS 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36.
Finance Lease Under IAS 17
The main differences between IFRS 16 and IAS 17 with respect to contracts formerly
classified as finance leases is the measurement of the residual value guarantees provided by
the lessee to the lessor. IFRS 16 requires that the company recognizes as part of its lease
liability only the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, rather
than the maximum amount of guaranteed as required by IAS 17. This change did not have
material effect on the company’s financial statements.

Impact on Lessor Accounting

As per IFRS 16, it has not been substantially changed the recognition and measurements
principals for lessor accounts for leases with IAS 17. Under IFRS 16, a lessor continues to
classify leases as either finance leases or operating leases and account for those two types
of leases differently. However, IFRS 16 has changed and expanded the disclosures
requirements, specifically disclosures related to lessor’s management of the risks arising
from its residual interest in leased assets. ‘

b) Impact on the Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases to the Company

As a result of the company’s assessment of IFRS 16, the changes to the accounting policies
and application of exemption criteria on the financial statements are identified as follows;

Impact on Lessee Accounting (Former Operating and Finance Leases)

As a lessee, the company did not have any leases which were previously classified as
finance lease. Further, the Company intended to recognize right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for its leases which were previously classified as operating leases. However, in
certain cases, the company has applied exemption criteria as promulgated by the IFRS 16.

Short-term leases ~Exemption applied

A reasonable assessment has been made to ensure whether there are short-term leases which
expired within 12 months period of time. However, the company does not have any such
short term leases.

Low value leases — Exemption applied

A reasonable assessment has been made to ensure whether there are any leases of low-value
assets such as personal computers and office furniture. However, the company does not
have any leases for which the underlying asset is low value.
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Non-lease component — Excluded from IFRS 16

A reasonable assessment has been made on the contracts to ascertain whether there is any
non-lease component included and to recognize respective stand-alone price for such non-
lease components. However, the company’s lease contracts did not have any directly
identifiable non-lease components for the year.

Lease component — IFRS 16 Applied

The nature of lease contract which was previously classified as operating lease

The company has entered into a lease contract on July 1, 2001 with the Ministry of
Municipal Affairs and Agriculture with an annual lease rental of QR.11,527 for a period of
30 years. As per the lease contract, the renewal of the lease contract at the end of lease
period is subject to mutual agreement by the both parties. Until December 31, 2018, since
the lease is for 30 years which is not the majority of the life of a land, there is no ownership
transfer at the end of 30 years to the company and the company is not entitled to exercise a
purchase option at the end of the lease period, the lease was treated as operating lease.
However, as a result of the application of IFRS 16, with effective from January 1, 2019, the
company recognized right-of-use assets and lease liabilities related to this lease contract in
the statement of financial position, measured at the present value of the future lease
payments on the date of adoption.

However, the company applied simplified transition approach of IFRS 16 by which
comparative amounts are not restated. When- measuring lease liabilities, the company
discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at January 01, 2019. The
best possible estimation and judgments are used by the management to apply the appropriate
borrowing rate where the factors such as company’s current financing structure, relevant
reference rates of currency, economic environment, government bond yields or interest rate
curves and relevant leases terms including the nature of the underlying assets are taken in to
considerations. In addition, the company has used number of practical expedients on initial
application of the IFRS 16.

Impact on Lessor or Intermediate Lessor Accounting

A portion of the building constructed on a lease land are rented to an external party.
However, the above lease contract was not considered as sub-lease, as it has not been
separately identified rental amounts pertaining to land and the company has separately
measured buildings as investment properties. Hence, the company is not an intermediate
lessor and the lease contract is not sub-lease. A

Considering the above and with the reasonable assessment, the lease contract on which the
company’s investment property is rented is considered as operating lease, hence, as a lessor,
respective rental income are disclosed in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The company is not required to make any adjustments on transition
of IFRS 16 for leases in which its acts as a lessor.

Financial Impact of Initial Application of IFRS 16
The following amounts are recognized under this new standard and included in the

statement of financial position:
Dec. 31,2019 Jan. 01, 2019

(QR.) (QR))
Right-of-use assets 106,871 116,164
Lease liabilities 105,561 113,322

To measure lease liabilities, the company discounted lease payments at using its incremental
borrowing rates as at January 01, 2019. There are no lease commitments for short-term
leases and low-value lease assets which would require the disclosures as of December 31,
2019.

The following amounts are recognized under this new standard and included in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income;

2019 2018

(QR) QR)

Deprecation of right-of-use assets 9,293 -0-
Finance cost on lease liabilities 3,766 -0-
Short term lease expenses -0- 11,527




iii)

4)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The following new and amendments to the standards have been issued but are not yet
effective and the company intends to adopt these standards, where applicable, when they
become effective;

New Standards Effective Date
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2021
Amendments to the Standards Effective Date
JAS28 & Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor Deferred

IFRS 10 and its Associate or Joint Venture Indefinitely

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

d)

Statement of Compliance

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the applicable provisions of
the Qatari Commercial Companies Law No. 11 of 2015.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been drawn up from the accounting records of the
Company under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain
non-current assets and financial instruments. Historical cost is generally based on fair
value of the consideration initially given in exchange for assets.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Qatari Riyals (QR.), which is the Company’s
functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest Qatari Riyals (QR.)
except when otherwise indicated.

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amount recognized in the financial statements are described in the note 5.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment, except for building on leasehold land which
was carried at revalued amount, are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended
use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and capitalized borrowing cost.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalized as part of that equipment. When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any revaluation surplus of building on leasehold land is recognized in other
comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve in equity, except to
the extent that it reverses revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized
in the profit or loss, in which case the increase is recognized in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income . A revaluation deficit is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, except to the extent that it
offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognized in the asset revaluation
surplus.
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use of disposal. Gains and losses on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment,
and are recognized net within other income in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the
revaluation reserve are transferred to retained eamings. Valuations are performed
frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of the revalued assets do not differ
materially from its carrying value.

When the use of a property, plant and equipment changes from owner-occupied to
investment property, the property is re-measured to fair value and reclassified
accordingly. Any gain arising on this re-measurement is recognized in profit or loss to
the extent that it reverses a previous impairment loss on the specific property, with
any remaining gain recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the
revaluation reserve. Any loss is recognized in profit or loss.

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is possible that the future economic
benefits embodied within the component will flow to the company, and its cost can be
measured reliably. The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset
or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. Depreciation is recognized
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of property and equipment as follows:

Buildings on leasehold land 30 years
Machinery and equipment 25 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Computer and software 3 years

Depreciation method, residual value and useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Until December 31, 2017, the machinery and equipment was depreciated on the basis
of utilization, however, during the year ended December 31, 2018, the company has
changed the method of depreciation for machinery from the basis of utilization to
straight-line. Hence, the management, based on an independent technical revaluation
report, believes that the remaining life of machinery is 25 years.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any impairment. Cost includes the
expenditure incurred on capital projects that have not been completed. When the
assets are completed and ready for their intended use, the capital work in progress will
be capitalized to appropriate category under property, plant and equipment and
depreciated thereafter.

Investment Properties

Investment property is a property held either to eamn rental income or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment
property is measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with
any change therein recognized in the profit or loss. Cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. The cost of self-
constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the investment property to a working
condition for their intended use.
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2)

k)

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is
recognized in profit or loss. When an investment property that was previously
classified as property, plant and equipment is sold, any related amount included in the
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings. When the use of a property
changes such that it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, its fair value at
the date of reclassification becomies its cost for subsequent accounting.

Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance
which provides future economic benefits, are included in the statement of financial
position under the category intangible assets and carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. Expenditure incurred on
software is capitalized only when it is probable that this expenditure will enable the
asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard
of performance and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset
reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis in the profit or loss from the
date when the asset is available for use, over the best estimate of its useful economic
life based on a pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the
company. :

The estimated useful life of the intangible asset in the current and comparative periods
is as follows:

Patents and know-how Indefinite useful life
Computer software 5 years

The intangible asset with an indefinite useful life should not be amortized and the
useful life of such an asset should be reviewed at each reporting period to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite usefnl life
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite should be accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate. An
intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use and subsequent disposal.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company recognizes
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-Use Assets

The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease
(ie., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-ofusc assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. Accordingly, the right-of-
use assets are depreciated over 12.5 years from January 01, 2019.
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If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, deprecation is calculated using
the remaining lease term of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to
impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement dates of the lease. The company recognizes lease liabilities
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(Example: changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term lease and lease of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
lease of properties, machinery and equipment, if any (those lease that have lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to lease
certain items that is considered of low value. Lease payment on short-term leases and
lease of low value assets (if any) are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the company is a lessor are classified as finance lease or operating
lease. Wherever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

When the company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the
sub-lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
lease term and is included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs; incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income, Contingent rents
are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Amounts due from leases under finance leases are recognized as receivable at the
amount of the company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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Policy applicable before January 01, 2019
For contract entered into before January 01, 2019, the company determined whether
the arrangement was or contained a lease based on the assessment of whether:

e Fulfillment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of the specific
assets; and
e The arrangement had conveyed a right to use the asset. An arrangement

convey the right to use of the asset if one of the following was met;

= the purchaser has the ability or right to operate the asset while obtaining or
controlling more than an insignificant amount of the out put

= the purchaser had the ability to control the physical access to the asset
while obtaining or controlling more than an insignificant amount of the
output: or

» facts and circumstances indicated that it was remote that other parties
would take more than an insignificant amount of the output and the price
per unit was neither fixed per unit of output nor equal to current market
price per unit of output.

The company as a lessee

In the comparative period as a lessee, the company classified leases that transfer
substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of finance leases. When this was
the case, the leased assets were measured initially at an amount equal to the lower
their fair value and present value of minimum lease payment. Minimum lease
payment was the payment over the lease term that the lessee was required to make,
excluding any contingent rent. Subsequent to initial recognition the assets were
accounted in accordance with the accounting policy of that asset.

Asset held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not
recognized in the company’s statement of financial position. Payment made under
operating lease was recognized in profit or loss over the lease term of the lease. Lease
incentives received were recognized as an integral part of the total lease expenses,
over the lease term of the lease.

The company as a lessor

‘When the company acted as lessor, it determined at lease inception whether each lease
was a finance leasé or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the company made
an overall assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all the risk and
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this was the case then the
lease was a finance lease; if not, then it was an operating lease. As part of this
assessment the company considered certain indicators such as whether the lease was
for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or companies assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators. Impairment losses of
continuing operations are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for
assets previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive
income. In this case, the impairment is also recognized in other comprehensive
income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.
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1)

k)

)

n)

Assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of
inventories is based on a weighted average cost basis, and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In case of
manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of
production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Provision is made for
obsolete and slow-moving items based on management’s Judgment

Employees’ End of Service Benefits

The Company provides for employees end of service benefits determined in
accordance with the applicable provision for Qatari Labour Law based on employees’
salaries and period of employment and are paid to the employees on termination or
resignation of employment with the company. The company has no expectation of
settling its employees end of service benefits obligation in near term and hence
classified this a non- current liability. The provision is not discounted as the
differences between the provision stated in the statement of financial position and net
present value is not expected to be significant.

Share Capital - Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Bonus shares and rights issued, if any will be
shown as an addition to the share capital. Issue of bonus shares are deducted from the
accumulated retained earnings of the company. Any share premium on rights issue are
accounted in compliance with local statutory requirements.

Provision

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect
is material, provisions are determined by cons1dermg the expected future cash flows
of the Company.

Financial Instraments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one ennty
and a financial liability or equlty instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortized cost (AC), fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Company’s business model for managing them.
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With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company itially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, fransaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at
an instrument level. The Company’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades)
are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company comumits to purchase
or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:

e Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)
with recycling of cuamulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

e Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

As of reporting date, that the company contracted with only the financial assets at
amortized cost.

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments)
The company measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:
e The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and,

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective
interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired. The company’s
financial assets at amortized cost include accounts and other receivables and bank
deposits.
Derecognition
The company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the company recognizes its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
Ifthe company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the company continues to recognize the financial asset
and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received. On
derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognized in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt
instrument classified at FVOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

-15-




In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument, if any which the

company has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVOCI, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective intgrest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

In certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and financial liabilities at amortized cost. The Company’s
financial liabilities include accounts and other payables, loans and borrowings and
lease liabilities.

All financial liabilities are recognized mitially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. ‘

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not
designated any financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.
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Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, the loans
and borrowing and other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate
amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

This category generally applies to accounts and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Revenue from Contracts with Customer balances

Contract assets

A contfract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services
transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Accounts Receivables

Accounts receivable represents the company’s right to an amount of consideration that
is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due). The accounting policies of financial assets in financial
instruments paragraph details the initial recognition and subsequent measurement of
accounts receivable.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

If a customer pays consideration before the company transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the
company performs under the contract.

Revenue Recognition

The company’s revenue streams are mainly consist from following major sources;
> Revenue from contracts with customers
> Rental income from investments properties

> Interest income
> Others

The company applies different recognition criteria and measurement principals for
each of above revenue streams as follows;
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Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The company is engaged to manufacture single use of disposable syringes and
trading medical equipment, tools and supplies. The company’s contracts with
customers for the delivery of goods generally include one performance
obligations. The corapany has concluded that the revenue from sale of goods
should be recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

The company recognizes revenue from the sale of goods measured at the fair
value of the consideration received. If the revenue cannot be reliably measured,
the company defers revenue recognition until the uncertainty is resolved.

The entity considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are
separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price
needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty points). In determining
the transaction price for the sale of goods, the entity considers the effects of
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components,
noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

As required for the financial statements, the company disaggregated the revenue
recognized from contracts with customers into categories that depict how the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by
economic factors.

Rental income from investments properties

Rental of investment properties where the company retains substantially all risks
and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating leases (net of any incentives given to the lessees) is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis with reference to the principal
outstanding and the amount of revenue is measured using the effective interest
method.

Other income
Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

Contract Cost

Incremental costs to obtain a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that would not have been
incurred if the contract had not been obtained. The company recognizes, as an
asset, the incremental costs of obtaining a contract if the company expects to
recover those costs. Costs that would have been incurred whether or not the
contract was obtained shall be recognized as an expense when incurred. In
general, the company recognizes the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as -
an expense if the amortization period of the asset that would have been
recognized is one year or less.

Costs to fulfill a contract

The company incurs cost to fulfill their obligations under a contract once it is
obtained, but before transferring goods or services. If the cost to full fill contract
with a customer that are not covered under another standard such as inventories,
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets are recognized as an ‘asset if
those costs meet the following criteria:
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» The costs relate directly to a contract or an anticipated contract that the
company can identify.

> The costs generate or enhance resources of the company that will be
used in satisfying or in continuing to satisfy performance obligation in
the future.

> The costs are expected to be recovered.

Fulfillment costs that meet all three of the above criteria are required to be
recognized as an asset and expensing the costs as they are incurred is not
permitted.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at
Qatari Riyals at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated Qatari
Riyals at exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are iranslated using Qatari Riyals at exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated into Qatari Riyals at exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

Dividend Distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability
in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividend is
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Earnings Per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary
shares. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for own shares
held. Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise convertible notes and share
options granted to employees, if any. The company incurred losses as a result,
losses was used for the calculation of per share.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of
cash in hand, cash at banks and bank overdraft balances.

Events after Reporting Date
The financial statements are adjusted to reflect events that occurred between the

reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue,
provided they give evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date.
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iii)

b)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 4,
the management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical Judgment in Applying Accounting Policies

The followings are critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations, that
management has made in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in financial statements;

Classification of financial assets

Management decides on the acquisition of a financial asset whether to classify it as fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), amortized cost, or financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). The company classifies financial assets as
amortized cost if the management objective is to hold financial asset in order to collect
coniractual cash flows or the financial asset, if the management objective is to achieve by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets its measured the
investment as FVOCI. All other financial assets are measured at FVPL. However, the
company substantially invested in financial assets at amortized cost and there were no
reportable financial assets at FVOCI or FVPL.

Accounting policy for measurement of investment properties

Management of the company is required to choose as its accounting policy either the fair
value model or the cost model and shall apply this policy to all of its investment
properties, if any. The company has chosen to adopt the fair value model for the purpose
of measuring its investment properties in the statement of financial position.

Determining the lease term

In determining lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination
option. Extensions options {or periodic after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

Determining lease commencement date

The commencement date of the lease has been determined in relation to the date on which
lessor makes the underlying asset available for use by the lessee. Management has applied
its best judgment to determine the actual commencement date.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At each reporting date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered from impairment. Impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
cost to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using an appropriate rate.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on systematic basis
over the useful lives of the assets. Management has determined the estimated useful lives
of each asset and/ or category of assets based on the following factors:

e Expected usage of asset,
o Expected physical wear and tear, which depends on operational and
environmental factors; and

e Legal or similar limits on the use of the assets.
Management has estimated no residual value for any item of property, plant and
equipment at the end of the useful lives as these have been deemed to be insignificant.
Management regularly review this estimate based on the market condition at the end of
each reporting period. The company had determined that the straight line method of -
depreciation is more appropriate for the company due to underutilization of the capacity.

Fair valuation of investment property

The company carries its investment property at fair value, with changes in fair value being
recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The
company engaged an independent valuation specialist to assess fair value as at December
31, 2019 and 2018 for investment property. It measures investment property were valued
by reference to market-based evidence, using comparable prices adjusted for specific
market factors such as nature, location and condition of the property.

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realizable value. When inventories
become old or obsolete, an estimate is made of their net realizable value. For individually
significant amounts, the estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which
are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively
and an allowance applied according to the inventory type and the degree of aging or
obsolescence, based on historical costs. Any difference between the amounts will actually
be realized in future periods and the amounts expected will be recognized in the statement
of profit or Joss and other comprehensive income.

Calculation of expected credit losses (ECL)

When measuring ECL, the company uses reasonable and supportable forward looking
information, which is based on assumptions for the future movements of different
economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arises on default. It is based on the different
between contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive,
taking in to account cash flows from a collateral and integral credit enhancement.

Probability of defaults continued a key input of measuring ECL. The probability of

default is an estimate of the likelihood default over given time horizon, the calculation of
which includes historical data, assumptions and expectation of future conditions.
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viif)

Going concern

Though the matters, facts and other financial information disclosed in note 2 to these
financial statements indicates the existence of a material uncertainty, which may cast
doubt on the company’s ability to continue as going concern. The management and those
charged with governance, has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going
concern and it has clear perception that the shareholders will resolve to enable the
company to continue its business operation for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the
major shareholder of the company, being a local development bank, provide consent to
enhance loans and borrowings and will not make any demand for the repayment of
existing facilities in near term. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be
prepared on the going concern basis.

Fair value measurements

Some of the company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an assets or liability, the company use
market observable data to the extent it is available. Where level 1 inputs are not
available, the company engages qualified external valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. Information about the valuation techniques

" and its inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are

disclosed in the respective notes and note 31.

Estimating Incremental Borrowing Rate for Leases

The company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it
uses its incremental borrowing rates (IBR) to measure lease labilities. The IBR is the rate
of interest that the company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use assets in a similar economic environment. Management has applied judgments and
estimates to IBR at the commencement of lease.

Impairment of right-of-use assets

In estimating the recoverable amount of the right-of-use assets, the management has made
assumptions about the achievable market rates for similar properties with similar lease
terms.

2.
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0

d)

2

b)

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the company has changed the method of
depreciation for machinery from the basis of utilization to straight line. The management,
based on an independent technical revaluation report, believes that the remaining useful
life of machinery was 25 years as at that date.

The revalued amount of the building on leasehold land was determined by an external,
independent property valuer, having appropriate recognized professional qualifications
and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The fair
value was determined based on market comparable approach that reflect recent
transaction prices for similar properties. In estimating the fair value of property, the
highest and best use of the property is their current use. There has been no change to the
valuation technique during the period. Accordingly, the management believes that the
estimated fair value of the building on leasehold land is higher than its carrying value.
Hence, there were no impairment losses were identified. However, the increase in
revalued amount compared to its carrying value was insignificant, the management is in
the presumption not to adjust the revalued amount as of reporting date. The decision was
taken on grounds that the changes in fair value of the buildings were insignificant and
less volatile.

Most of the property, plant and equipment listed above were secured/ pledged against the
loans and borrowings disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements.

Buildings have been erected on a leasehold land obtained from Ministry of Municipal
Affairs and Agriculture with an annual lease rental of QR.11,527 for 30 years which will
be expired on June 30, 2031 subject to renewal. The right-of-use assets related to this
lease contract is disclosed in note 8.

The capital work in progress represents capital nature expenses incurred to upgrade the
ventilation system and certain expenses related to upgrade the fire alarm system, upon
completion of certain approval, the above expenses will be capitalized to appropriate
category under property, plant and equipment and depreciated thereafter.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

This item consist of the followings; 2019 2018
(QR.) QR)
Buildings — Exhibit A 12,590,000 12,590,000

The company’s investment property consist, a building constructed on the portion of
leasehold land (65,779 Sq.Ft) for the use of Warehouse rented out to an external party.
On September 2015, the company signed an operating lease agreement with an external
party with effective from December 2015. The rental income arising from the investment
property carried at fair value amounting to QR.2,437,895 for the year ended December
31,2019 (2018: QR.2,437,895).

The fair value of investment property was determined by an external, independent
property valuer, having appropriate recognized professional qualifications and recent
experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The independent
valuer provides the fair value of the company’s investment property annually. The fair
value was determined based on market comparable approach that reflects recent
transaction prices for similar properties. In estimating the fair value of property, the
highest and best use of property is their current use. There were no changes to the
valuation technique during the year. Further, there were no changes on the fair value of
investment properties compared to previous year, hence, no gain or loss arises as a result
of fair valuation.

The company’s investment properties has been initially recognized during the year 2009
from property, plant and equipment and measured at fair value model from therein.
However, during post recognition period, in numerous times, part of cost and fair valued
amounts were transferred from (to) between property, plant and equipment and
investment property, due to change in use from owner occupied to investment property
and vice versa. The management is in the process ascertaining the cumulative cost and
changes in fair value, which had been included in the retained earnings as of December
31, 2019.
24-
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

The company has entered a lease contract with the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and
Agriculture with an annual lease rental of QR.11,527 for a period of 30 years. As a result
of the application of IFRS 16, with effective from January 1, 2019, the company has
recognized right-of-use assets and lease liabilities related to this lease contract in this
statement of financial position, measured at the present value of the future lease
payments on adoption as follows;

Right—of—Use Assets

Movements in right-of-use assets are as follows: 2019 2018

(QR) (QR.)
At the initial application of IFRS 16 113,322 - -0-
Reclassified from other receivables 2,842 -0-
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (9,293) -0-
Balance at end of the year — Exhibit A 106,871 -0-

The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the period of lease terms on a straight line
basis for a period started from January 01, 2019 to June 30, 2031.

Lease Liabilities

Movements in lease liabilities are as follows: 2019 2018
(QR) (QR)

At the initial application of IFRS 16 113,322 -0-

Settlements during the year (11,527) -0-

Accretion of interest during the year 3,766 -0-

Balance at end of the year — Note 8(c) 105,561 -0-

Lease liability is recognized based on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of iritial application.

The company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities.
Lease liabilities are monitored within the company’s treasury functions.

Based on maturity, the lease liabilities are classified in the statement of financial
position as follows:

2019 2018

(QR) (QR)

Lease liabilities-long term portion — Exhibit A 97,529 -0-
Lease liabilities-short term portion — Exhibit A 8,032 -0-
Total —Note 8(b) 105,561 -0-
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a)
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The details of cost, accumulated amortization and respective carrying value of various
categories of intangible assets are as follows: '
Patentsand  Computer

Know-how Software Total
(QR.) (QR) (QR.)

Cost
As at December 31, 2017 10,329,937 596,044 10,925,981
As at December 31,2018 10,329,937. 596,044 10,925,981
As at December 31,2019 10,329,937 596,044 10,925,981
Accumulated amortization
As at December 31,2017 -0- 546,374 546,374
Charge for the year -0- 49,670 49,670
As at December 31,2018 -0- 596,044 596,044
As at December 31, 2019 -0- 596,044 596,044
Carrying Value
As at December 31,2019 — Exhibit A 10,329,937 -0- 10,329,937
As at December 31, 2018 — Exhibit A 10,329,937 -0- 10,329,937

The company acquired the full rights for the use of the patents and know how without
any limitations and the patents now belong to the company with full rights. However,
defects (if any) on existing patent rights is being upgraded by the management to meet
overall objective of the Company. Further, the management is in the process of assessing
the future economic value of the patents and know-how relating to safety syringes.

- INVENTORIES
This item coﬁsists of the following: 2019 2018
(QR.) (QRr.)
Raw materials ' _ 6,638,370 7,194,010
Wortk in progress 924,291 1,108,106
Finished goods 2,798,603 - 2,766,116
Spare parts 2,253,860 2,394,147
Consumables 191,435 207,620
Sub Total 12,806,559 13,669,999
Less: Provision for slow moving inventories
-Note 10(b) (1,571,223) (1,571,223)
Net 11,235,336 12,098,776
Goods in transit 35,917 95,363
Total — Exhibit A 11,271,253 12,194,139
Provision for slow moving inventories
Movement during the year were as follows: 2019 2018
(QR.) (QR)
Balance at beginning of the year 1,571,223 1,854,177
Reversal of provision during the year -0- (282,954)
Balance at end of the year — Note 10(a) 1,571,223 1,571,223
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11)

12)

13)

b)

b)

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This item consists of the following: 2019 2018
(QR.) (QR)
Accounts receivable — Note 11(c) 9,357,944 11,974,132
Provision for expected credit losses -Note 11(b) (7,452,266) (7,719,889)
Net 1,905,678 4,254,243
Supplier advances 532,753 617,517
Prepaid expenses 96,638 77,238
Margin deposit 10,572 10,572
Staff receivables 5,220 4,845
Others 30,529 46,842
Total — Exhibit A 2,581,390 5,011,257
Provision for expected credit losses
Movement during the year were as follows: 2019 2018
(QR) (QR)
Balance at beginning of the year 7,719,889 5,880,685
Provision for the year -0- 2,058,026
Reversal during the year (247,374) (151,006)
Foreign exchange adjustments (20,249) (67,816)
Balance at end of the year — Note 11(a) 7,452,266 7,719,889

Concentration: A sum of QR.8,390,186 receivable from three major customers, which
represents 90% of the total accounts receivable as at December 31, 2019 (2018:
QR.11,603,408 receivable from five major customers, which represents 97% of the total
accounts receivable).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This item consists of the following: 2019 2018
(QR) (QR)
Cash in hand 17,512 9,174
Cash at banks 944,396 484,930
Total — Exhibit A 961,908 494,104
Less: Bank overdraft — Exhibit A (15,154,640) (13,421,695)
Net — Exhibit D (14,192,732) (12,927,591)
SHARE CAPITAL
This item consists of the following;: 2019 2018
| (QR) @QR)
Authorized, issued and fully paid up capital with a
par value of QR.1 each — Exhibit A 115,500,000 115,500,000
Authorized, issued and fully paid up share capital
(number of shares) — Note 13 (b) 115,500,000 115,500,000

Share split

As per the instruction of the Qatar Financial Markets Authority, the Company’s
Extraordinary General Assembly held on May 26, 2019, approved to split the nominal
value of ordinary shares of the company from QR. 10 per share to QR.1 per share. As a
result, the company’s shares have been increased from 11,550,000 (with par value of
QR.10 per share) to 115,500,000 (with a par value of QR.1 per share). The listing of the
new shares on Qatar Exchange was effective from June 18, 2019. Consequently,
weighted average number of shares outstanding has been retrospectively adjusted.
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14)

15)

16)

17)

b)

b)

b)

LEGAL RESERVE

The legal reserve of the company amounting to QR.30,343,120 (Exhibit A) as at
December 31, 2019 (2018: QR.30,343,120) created, pursuant to Qatari Commercial
Companies’ Law No. 11 of 2015, which mandates 10% of the net profit for the year is to
be deducted annually and retained in the legal reserve account. The deduction shall be
suspended when the balance in this reserve account amounts to at least 50% of the
Company’s capital and is not available for distribution except in the circumstances
specified in the law.

Since the company has incurred net losses, the management has not transferred any
portion to legal reserve during the years ended December 31, 2018 and December 31,
2019 respectively.

REVALUATION RESERVE

The revaluation reserve amounting to QR.11,999,694 (Exhibit A) as at December 31,
2019 (2018: QR.11,999,694) relates to the revaluation of buildings in the previous years
as owner-occupied recognized in property, plant and equipment.

The management is in the process of determining depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount of the building and depreciation based on its original cost to transfer
certain revaluation reserve to retained earnings. Such transfers will not be made through
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

EMPLOYEES’ END OF-SERVICE BENEFITS
The movements in the employees’ end of service benefits during the year are as follows:

2019 2018

(QR) (QR)

Balance at beginning of the year 1,046,028 885,016
Provisions for the year 181,011 329,349
Payments during the year (229,922) (168,337)
Balance at end of the year — Exhibit A — Note 16(b) 997,117 1,046,028

Includes a sum of QR.134,588 unpaid end of service benefits for resign employees which
will be due within next twelve months period.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

This item consists of the following: 2019 2018
(QR)) (QR.)

Term loans 90,644,198 88,773,618

Documentary credit facility 14,123,959 15,498,077

Total — Note 17(b), (¢) & (d) 104,768,157 104,271,695

The loans and borrowings are classified in the statement of financial position on their
maturity as follows:

2019 2018

(QR.) (QR)

Long term portion — Exhibit A 99,968,055 98,878,378

Short term portion — Exhibit A 4,800,102 5,393,317

Total —Note 17(a) 104,768,157 104,271,695
Movements of the loans and borrowings during the year were as follows:

2019 . 2018

(QR) (QR)

Balance at beginning of the year 104,271,695 97,288,318

Obtained during the year 2,314,947 14,219,130

Repayments during the year (3,837,491) (8,223,903)

Interest accrued during the year 2,541,431 3,011,096

Interest paid during the year (522,425) (2,022,946)

Balance at end of the year — Note 17(a) 104,768,157 104,271,695
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4]

h)

Facility outstanding
Loan category 2019 2018
(QR) (QR)
From a local commercial bank
Term loan — Note 17 (e) 899,790 1,374,034
Documentary credit facility — Note 17 (f) 3,900,312 5,389,429
Subtotal 4,800,102 6,763,463
From a major shareholder- A development bank
Ijara Facility — Note 17(g) 66,533,809 64,833,137
Tjara Facility — Note 17(h) 8,631,370 8,425,162
Tawrug Facilities — Note 17(i) 7,220,167 7,000,000
Lara Facility — Note 17(j) 3,946,589 3,835,442
Working capital — Note 17 (k) 9,328,634 9,328,634
Murabaha — Note 17 (1) 571,758 457,400
Jjara Facility — Note 17 (m) 322,615 322,615
Fixed Assets Project Loan —Note 17 () 3,260,211 3,153,580
Fixed Assets Project Loan —Note 17 (0) 152,902 152,262
Subtotal 99,968,055 97,508,232
Total — Note 17(a) 104,768,157 104,271,695

Details of the Facilities Obtained from a Local Commercial Bank

The company obtained a term loan facility from a local commercial bank for the purpose
of warehouse construction. The loan was rescheduled after initial agreement and
repayable at QR.250,000 equal quarterly installments which will be matured on or before
May 2020.This facility carries interest rate of 6.5%.

The company has obtained a documentary credit facility, overdraft and bank guarantees
from local commercial bank for short term working capital purposes. These facilities
carries interest rate of 5% to 6.5% and repayable within one year.

Details of the Facilities Obtained from a Major Shareholder — A Development Bank
The company has obtained numerous facilities from its one of major shareholders (M/S.
Qatar Development Bank, a related party) for different purposes. Though the underlying
facilities are carried different maturity periods as detailed below, all the above loans from
M/S. Qatar Development Bank, were waived off for collection in the next 12 months
which is in line with their financial support to the Company. Further, the above local
development bank has confirmed not to make any demand for the repayment in next 12
months and will extend the repayment schedule with repayment dates not earlier than
Japuary 01, 2021.

The facilities are initially given on a standalone basis (some are rescheduled) as follows;

The loan was converted from the conventional to Ijara for amount of QR.60,681,807 in
April 2016. The initial facility was granted to purchase machineries and equipment. The
facility will be repaid within 5 years after expiration of 2 years grace period from the date
April 10, 2016. The facility carries interest rate of 3%.

The facility represents, rescheduling of previously obtained facility as to one new Islamic
facility, which will be matured in April 2021. The facility carries interest rate of 3%.

A Tawruq facility obtained for settlement of outstanding supplier dues and for meeting
operational expenses of the company. The facility carries interest rate of 3.5% and this
supposed to be matured in August 2019. However, the company is in the process of re-
scheduling.
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k)

D

m)

18)

a)

b)

19)

Ljara facility obtained to purchase machinery and equipment, with series of variable
installments those will be matured on or before July 2023 and carries interest rate of 3%.

Revolving facilities provided for the purposes of financing for working capital
requirement, which carries interest rate of 3 %. It supposed to be matured in October
2018. However, the company is in the process of rescheduling.

Murabaha facility was obtained to purchase of raw materials, this is a revolving facilities
with different maturity periods including certain past dues. The facility carries interest
rate of 3%.

Facility was provided to finance warehouse construction, this supposed to be matured in
October 2018. The facility carries interest rate of 3%. The company is in process of
rescheduling.

At the time of converting the facilities from conventional to Islamic, the bank considered
as separate facility for the un-paid interest accrued on the major term loans obtained in

earlier periods. These facilities carries interest rate of 3% and will be matured in April
2023.

These facilities carries interest rate of 3% and will be matured on October 25, 2022.
Most of the company’s assets are pledged against the above facilities as of reporting date.

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES

This item consists of the following;: 2019 2018

(QR.) (QR.)
Accounts payables —Note 18(b) 827,427 1,013,076
Accrued expenses 1,037,772 1,079,684
Dividend payable 214,841 214,841
Customer advances/ contract liabilities 120,089 37,308
Retentions payable 99,858 99,858
Provision for leave salary and airfare 78,840 72,000
Others 76,187 52,387
Total — Exhibit A 2,455,014 2,569,154

Concentration: A sum of QR.313,031 payable to three major suppliers of the company,
which represents 38% of the total accounts payable as at December 31, 2019 (2018:
QR.530,770 payable to four major suppliers of the company, which represents 52% of the
total accounts payable).

REVENUE
The revenue type wise consists of the following:
2019 2018
(QR) (QR.)
Sales of syringes 3,277,066 3,282,125
Sales of trading products 3,339,044 6,998,130
Sales of packed needles 1,073,420 792,719
Sales of IV cannula 378,763 330,152
Sales of sterilization products 75,598 -0-
Total — Exhibit B & Note 19(b) & (c) 8,143,891 11,403,126
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21)

22)

b)

Revenue by geographical location are as follows:

Within Qatar
Outside Qatar

Total — Note 19(a)

Revenue by customer are as follows:

Corporate customers
Government customers

Total - Note 19(a)

OPERATING COST

This item consists of the following:

Cost of syringes

Cost of trading products
Cost of packed needles
Cost of IV cannula

Cost of sterilization

Total — Exhibit B

OTHER INCOME

This item consists of the following:

Rental income
Reversal of accounts payable
Reversal of provision for expected credit losses -

Reversal of provision for slow moving inventories
Others

Total — Exhibit B

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

This item consists of the following:

Freight charges and other distribution expenses
Advertisements and business promotion

Total — Exhibit B

2019 2018
(QR.) (QR)
5,989,668 10,522,422
2,154,223 880,704
8,143,891 11,403,126
2019 2018
(QR.) (QR.)
2,918,013 1,491,738
5225878 9911,388
8,143 891 11,403,126
2019 2018
(OR) (QR)
4,336,282 3,069,772
2,081,262 4357242
686,494 741,430
255,768 308,792
11,802 -0-
7,371,608 8,477,236
2019 2018
(QR.) (QR))
2,437,895 2,437,895
135,944 -0-
247,374 151,006
-0- 282,954
179,654 57,849
3,000,867 2.929.704
2019 2018
(QR.) (QR))
242,694 192,090
194,842 109,611
437,536 301,701




23)

24)

25)

26)

b)

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

This item consists of the following: 2019 2018

(QR,) (QR)
Staff cost — Note 23(b) 3,223,474 4,145,791
Legal and professional fees 410,183 399,855
Insurance 115,244 62,169
Repair and maintenance 260,304 246,922
Electricity and water 230,106 243,975
Foreign exchange losses 41,577 94,408
IT and communication 52,891 61,137
Travelling expenses 33,918 45,699
Office expenses 45,034 38,817
Inventories written off 45,473 389,460
Property, plant and equipment written off 437 18,918
Provision for expected credit losses -0- 2,058,026
Short term lease expenses -0- 11,527
Suppliers advances written off -0- 709,638
Others 133,728 136,075
Total — Exhibit B 4,592,369 8,662,417

Staff cost includes an amount of QR. 60,000 as board of directors salary. Based on
the decision from remuneration committee with effective from July 2019, the
managing director/board member is entitled for QR.10,000 as monthly remuneration.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

This item consists of the following: 2019 2018
(QR.) (QR)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5,521,083 5,652,791
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 9,293 -0-
Amortization of intangible assets -0- 49,670
Total — Exhibit B 5,530,376 5,702,461
FINANCE COST
This item consists of the following: 2019 2018
(QR) (QR.)
Interest/ bank profit on borrowings 2,541,431 3,011,096
Interest on bank overdraft 856,776 848,713
Finance cost on lease liabilities 3,766 -0-
Other finance charges 197,173 162,943
Total — Exhibit B 3,599,146 4,022,752
(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic and Diluted (Loss) Per Share

The basic loss per share is computed by dividing the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year as follows:

2019 2018
(QRr.) (QR)
(Loss) attributable to ordinary share holders of the
Company (QR.) (10,386,277)  (12,833,737)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 115,500,000 115,500,000

Basic and diluted (loss) per share (QR.) — Exhibit B (0.090) 0.111)

The loss per share for the comparative year has been restated due to the shares split made by
the company on June 18, 2019 as disclosed in Note 13(b) to these financial statements.
Further, no separate diluted loss per share was calculated since the diluted loss per share was
equal to basic loss per share.
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28)

29)

b)

SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the company is organized into one business unit based on its
nature of activities, as the company’s operations pertain to the manufacturing and trading
of disposable syringes and medical devices. Decisions about resource allocation and
monitoring of performance are based on the single business unit identified by the
management. However, geographically, the company’s revenue consist of exports to
some foreign countries as disclosed in note 19 (b).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with Related Parties

Related parties consist of major shareholders, related companies, key management
personnel of the company, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved
by the company’s management. M/s. Qatar Development Bank being a one of major
shareholders and lending financial institution became related party of the company.

The transactions with the above related party included in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are as follows:

2019 2018
(QR) (QR.)
Finance cost 2,346,985 2,566,989

Amount due to related party (M/S. Qatar Development Bank) pertains the loans and
borrowings of the company as disclosed in note 17. These facilities are secured by the
company’s assets. The interest/ bank profits are based on prevailing market rates and
settlement normally occurs in cash.

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel comprise the Board of Directors and key members of
management having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the company.

The remuneration and other compensation to the key member of the management and the
board of director included in general and administrative expenses under staff cost are as
follows:

2019 2018

(QR.) (QR)

Salaries to managing director/board member 60,000 -0-
Salaries & short term benefits to chief executive officer 286,357 527,719
End of service benefits 8,230 15,327
Total 354,587 543,046

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The following summarizes the significant contractual commitments and contingencies:

2019 2018

(QR) (QR)

Guarantees 3,394,520 3,704,688
Letter of credit ~0- 55,591
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30)

a)

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company monitors and manages the risks relating to its business and operations. The
Company bas exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

= Liquidity risk

= Creditrisk

= Capital risk

= Market risk
= Operational risk
= Other risks

The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by diversifying the sources of
its capital. It maintains timely reports about its risk management fumction and monitors
risks and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

Risk Management Framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Company’s risk management framework. The Company has not yet established
separate risk management function with clear terms of reference from the Board of
Directors, its committees and the associated executive management committees. This is to
be supplemented with a clear organizational structure with documented delegated
authorities and responsibilities from the Board of Directors to executive management
committees and senior managers.

The Company’s risk management policy framework which sets out the risk profiles for the
Company, risk management, control and business conduct standards for the Company’s
operations will be put in place in the near future.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial instruments. The Company manages
liquidity by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities, and by continually
monitoring cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation.

During the year, loans from Qatar Development Bank, a related party waived off
repayment for the next 12 months.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities
including finance cost payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements, if any:

Carrying Contractual Less than Between

December 31, 2019 amount cash outflows 1 year 1to 5 years
(QR.) (QR) (QR.) (QR.)

Dividend payable 214,841 214,841 214,841 -0-
Accounts and other payables 2,240,173 2,240,173 2,240,173 -0-
Loans and borrowings 104,768,157 104,768,157 4,800,102 99,968,055
Lease liabilities 105,561 105,561 8,032 97,529
Total 107,328,732 107,328,732 7,263,148 100,065,584
Carrying Contractual Less than Between

December 31, 2018 amount cash outflows 1 year 1to 5 years
(QR) QR) @QR) QR)

Dividend payable 214,841 214,841 214,841 -0~
Accounts and other payables 2,354,313 2,354,313 2,354,313 -0-
Loans and borrowings 104,271,695 104,271,695 5,393,317 98,878,378
Total 106,840,849 106,840,849 7,962 471 98,878,378

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis would occur
significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts.
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b) Credit Risk :

Credit risk refers to risk that a counter party will default on its obligation resulting in
financial loss to the company. In order to minimize the credit risk, the management has
developed and implemented a credit risk grading for its major customer and other debtors
to categorize the company’s credit exposure according to their degree of default. The
management uses the publicly available financial information’s and its own trading records
with customer for this purpose.

Financial instruments that are potentially subject the company to the credit risk are cash at
banks, accounts and other receivable.

Accounts and other receivable )

The management has a credit risk policy which monitors the credit risk exposure to
accounts and other receivable in ongoing basis and credit evaluation are performed on all
customers requiring credit and are approved by the management. Expected credit losses of
accounts and other receivable is disclosed in note 11(b) to these financial statements.
Appropriate procedures for follow-up and recovery are in place to monitor credit risk.

Cash at banks
The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because the counter parties are banks with high
credit rating and company maintain all its bank accounts in well reputed banks.

The maximum risk exposure to the company is represented in the carrying amount of
these instruments as disclosed in the relevant notes. The following is an age analysis of
these instruments:

Not Past due Past Due  More than
December 31, 2019 pastdue 0-90 days  91-180 days 181 days Total
(QR) (QR) (QR) (QR) (QR)
Cash at banks 944,396 -0- -0- -0- 944,396
Accounts and other receivable (net) 675,712 785,012 102,419 1,018,247 2,581,390
Net 1,620,108 785,012 102,419 1,018,247 3,525,786
Not Past due Past Due More than
December 31, 2018 pastdue  0-90days  91-180 days 181 days Total
(QR) (QR) @QR) (QR) @QR)
Cash at banks 484,930 -0- -0- -0- 484,930
Accounts and other receivable (net) 757,014 1,477,115 1,755,036 1,022,092 5,011,257
Net 1,241,944 1,477,115 1,755,036 1,022,092 5,496,187

Capital Risk

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital
consists of share capital and accumulated losses and other reserves of the Company. The
Board of Directors monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to
ordinary shareholders.

Regularly, the Company reviews its capital structure and considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with it. It manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to support
its operations while maximizing the return to shareholders through the optimization of the
debt and equity balance.

The Company’s net debt to adjusted equity ratio at the reporting date was follows:

2019 2018

~ (QR) (QR.)

Total Liabilities 123,480,489 121,308,572
Less: cash in hand and at banks (961,908) (494,104)
Net debt 122,518,581 120,814,468
Total Equity 30,647,748 41,034,025
Net debt to equity 4:1 2.94:1

There were no changes in the company's approach to capital management during the year.
Due to above high rank debt financing, the board of directors may review the possibility
of capital restructure of the company.
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d) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices which will affect the company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

The market risk primarily consists of the followings:

= Foreign currency risk
= Interest rate risk
= Equity price risk

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

The Company incurs foreign currency risk on its purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than Qatari Riyals which is company’s functional and presentation
currency.

The company does not hedge its currency exposure. However, management is in the
opinion that the company’s exposure to currency risk is minimal as the major items of
the foreign currency financial assets and liabilities are denominated in US Dollars are not
considered to represent significant currency risk. While the receivables nominated in
other foreign currencies such as the GBP and EUR are minimal and the company has
made adequate provision for expected credit losses against those receivables.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

The company has maintained recognized financial instruments which are subject to
interest rate risk and which may potentially result in changes in the contractually
determined cash flows associated with or may cause repricing of such financial
instruments.

The company is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest bearing assets and liabilities,
which mainly consist of bank overdrafts and loans and borrowings. The company adopts
a policy of ensuring that interest rate is on a fixed rate basis, thus minimizing interest rate
risk. A significant portion of loans and borrowings pertains to a major
shareholder/related party. At the reporting date, the interest-bearing financial instruments
are as follows:

Profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the company’s interest-bearing financial
instruments were:

Variable rate instruments Carrying amount Carrying amount
2019 2018
(QR) QR)
Financial assets
Cash at banks 944,396 484,930
Financial liabilities
Loan and borrowings 104,768,157 104,271,695
Bank overdraft 15,154,640 13,421,695

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, and the Company does not designate derivatives (interest
rate swaps) as hedging instruments under a fair value hedge accounting model. Therefore
a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.
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(iii) Equity Price Risk

31)

H

Other market price risk mainly consists of equity price risk. The equity price risk arises from
investments in equity instruments. Management of the company monitors the mix of debt and
equity securities in its investment portfolio based on market indices (if any). Material
investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell
decisions are approved by the company's management.

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity instruments decrease as a result of
changes in the price indices of investments in other entities' equity instruments as part of the
company's investment portfolio.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes
associated with the company’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from
external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal
and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behavior.

Operational risks arise from all of the company’s operations. The company’s objective is to
manage operational risks 5o as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the
company’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that
restrict initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and
implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management
within each business unit. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall
standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas:

* Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent
authorization of transactions.

= Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions.

=  Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements.

*=  Documentation of controls and procedures.

* Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the
adequacy of controls and procedures to address the risks identified.

* Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action.

*  Development of contingency plans.

*  Training and professional development.

= Ethical and business standards.

*  Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Other Risks

Other risks to which the company is exposed are regulatory risk, legal risk, and reputation
risk.

* Regulatory risk is confrolled through a framework of compliance policies and
procedures. The operations of the company are subject to regulatory requirements of
the State of Qatar.

= Legalrisk is managed through the effective use of internal and external legal advisers.

= Reputation risk is controlled through the company regular examination of issues that
are considered to have repercussions for the company, with guidelines and policies
being issued as appropriate.

FAIR VALUE

Fair Value Measurement ,
The Company measures certain financial instruments and certain non- financial assets, if
applicable, at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are
measured at fair value are disclosed in these financial statements, if any.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
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»In the srincipal market for the asset or liability, or
> In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in these financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

> Level 1:- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. 3

> Level 2:- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

» Level 3:- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Accounting Classification And Fair Values

Based on the above fair value measurements, it has been assessed that the fair values of the
financial instruments presented in these financial statements as of reporting date are not
materially different from their carrying values.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of the
company’s assets by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data.

The following table shows an analysis of assets recorded at fair value by level of the fair value
hierarchy:

Investment properties Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at December 31,2019 — (QR.) -0- 12,590,000 -0- 12,590,000
As at December 31, 2018~ (QR.) -0- 12,590,000 -0- 12,590,000

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative information and figures presented for 2018 have been reclassified where
necessary to preserve consistency with the 2019 information and figures. However, such
reclassifications did not have any effect on the previously reported net profit, other
comprehensive income or equity.
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